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1. The Ulyanovsk Automobile Plant (Ulyanovskis Avto Zavod}{UAZ) was located about

2o

3o

3 im northvest of Ulyanovs k (5Le20+1/LB%2L'E) . Tt was & branch of the automobile
plant in vorkiy( )6020*'14,%14 00'k), There was a iar;e airfield 500 meters south of the
plant on the ooposlte side of the G-meter-wide paved hizhway. There was a

brickyard of the airfield. It produced bricks for the comstruction of the
automobile plant and the workers' settlement. The Sviyaga River,which flowed north,
was 1.5 km northeast of the automcbile plant. A P camp and a camp for Soviet
convicts were located west ol the aubtomobile plant, There were one large and tvio
small plant-owned locomotives. A spur track was laid in 1947, #

From 1945 to 19L9 all the construction work was supervised by an administration
called Avtostroy. Sewage construction and rcad buildingwere done by Trust No 38.
Abovesround and underground structures were built by Trust No 18, Both trusts were
from Kuibyshev (53012!'N/50009'E)., The constructicn of the plant had alrcady started
during the war, Five sowrces learnod from Soviet workers that 1940 was the tirst
year of construction. After some instaliations had been built, construction work
was suspendod during the wvar, ihe construction of the pover slant was not resumed
wntil late 194k, In 1945, when most of the Pis arrived, there were only two
vwicrkshop buildings standing, on either side of the main road in the plarnti area.
Construction work was orizinally scheduled 4o be comnlebed by 1950, Accerding to
one source it was not likely that all installations could be set up before 19"1o
In early 10L9, four sources learned fron Soviet workers that the construction
work would end in 1952,

According Lo four sources the plant coverad an arez of about 500 x 800 meters.

Ir 'ay 19L9, the plant consisted cf a ma:hine shop for the comstruction of engines,
a chassis department, a departuent for the final assembly of the trucks, a foundry,
two forges, a pressing department, a departzent for the constructicn of truck
bedies and cabgs, a tool shop, two hardenin; shops, one chrome-plating shopsand a
heatin: ard pover plant. Sowme of these installations were still under construction
or beiny cquipwed, including the foundry, a new furge, and one hardenin; shop. ‘he
plant was mainly equip.ed with German-made, Sritish-made and American-nade machine
teols, There were only lew Kusuisn-made machines, wo sources reported ihat the
ingtallations of the ~anderer Automobile lant in “hemnitz (N 51/K 56) were moved
%o Ulyanovsk. lowever, only one source actually obs.rved machinery frem the
Chemnits p;ant in Ulyanovsk. flmost 2ll sources reported the installation of
machinery coning from the Hteyer-Puch Flant in Vienna, After early 19L7, pover and
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heat wer« supolied by tic plant—owned heating and nower staiicn (TH2). There
was also an emergency power unit, s

Lo Accordin: to infornation {rom all sources, the production started in the Lsll of
1047 and at first consisted only of the assenbly of trucks Irom component parts
which werc sup lied to the plant. A total of 100 trucks was conpleted Ly Cctober
19L7. Prior to late 1947, the daily protuction amounted to only 3 or L trucks.
Ihe daily production increased to 15 trucks in early 1948, In April and ay
1949, the blant preduced 35 to LO trucks daily.althoush the daily quota was
50 units. £ daily production of 100 irucks was scheduled for 1750, In early

19h93 some of the truck bodies left the plant and were to be equip.ed with
dumping bodies in anobther plant. Accordin: %o one source, 20 percoent of tie
trucks produced were shinnied out this way. The production rate varicd
considerably frem cay to day. Production was held back because of the
inadequate supply of power, the very irregsular supnly of component parts,and the
lack of skilled workers, « two-axlel,S-ton truck model was assembled priecr to
April 18L9, Jeveral sources called this truck the Ford AA model. It had a

Tlatiened radiator end angular fenders, The rear axle had dual wheols, lhe
sasoline enrine ha¢ four cylinders, The construction of a new notely a 3-ton
2I5 truck; was schedulod to start after the plant construction was completed.

" AlY component parts of this truck were to be produced in the plant itself, sui

5., Coal shipnients for the TIZ power siation arrived from the 'rals. The coal was
of inferier guality. #11 cemponent parts for the trucks such as Cngines,
automobile sheots, chassis frames, axles, wheels, tires, steering equipmont,
fenders, radiabors; upholstory, transmisuions, difiercntials, doors, 1lishts,
ard complete elscirical systems werc still beins susnlied by the autcomobile
plant in Gorki,in “ay 1949,

6. Iost seurces reported that 2,000 to 2,500 Joviet workers were employed in ihe
procducticn deparinents in cach shilt, #Forty percent of the worlors were wonen.
Two 8-hour chifts werv viorked, hccordin; to two sources, the manager ol the
plant vias Kuznin (fnun). *he stafi of skilled werkers had boen trained in the
dolotuv futeomobile Plant in vorkiy., ,

7o The plant was surreundsc by a 2.5 neter hish wo.den fence with waten towers,
It was jguarded by oI VD uniis,

25X1A #| ICmm*lentn For location sketch of the automobile plant, see Annex 1, based

on infermation from Pus, Accordini to this infornalion the automobile plant vwas
beiny; built on the area of Lhe former plant for aircraft accessories. Existing
facilities of tho former plant were being used,

25X 1A % | Yomnente For layout sketch of the plant, sec inuex 2, based on infursation
(rom Piis, "he workshops shaded in the sketch already existed in early 1915,

25X 1 At ; Uomx;xento. It is knewn f1om other records that the truck produced in this
autonobile piant is the GAZ=iT=type Lruck which proved useful during the war, It
corresponds to Lhe GAZ-Ai-type truck bubt is equipped with the 50 hp GAZ-i=type
gasoline enzine. M truck was produced in Ulyanovsk under the trademark UsZ.
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Location Tketch of the Autcmobile Plant in Ulyanovsk
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nof to scale

erend?

01d brench of the Sviyega liver, _

Dem bullt by PWe, The dam confisted of %wo bhrick walls filled in
with earth. Next to the dam wasg & pumping station {s) pumping the
wgter through & canzl (b)) to the water basgin nesr t-e TIO Power Ilant
of' the zutomobile plant

P Cemwp No 7245,

Camp JTor foviat convicts,

Ly ¢ Flont.

cattlerent under construction,

fiviield. :

Frickyerd, vhlch profaced | re for the constructicn of the plant,
The duilly rroduction cuots the trickysrd wae 30,000 bricks., The
sctuel production varied between 16,000 snd 27,000 hricke daile in
gsrly 1949,
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Layout &

kateh of the lfutomcbile Plant in Ulysnovek

Legend: C{ee next page.
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Lesend:
1, THZ heat and péwer station winich supplied power to the automobile plant,

the airfield ard the town. A hiph tension line, consisting of three cables

supported on wcoden poles, led from the THZ station to the tewn, The T:Z

station also supplied steam for heat and power through underyround pipc

lines to all werksiop buildings, The boiler was fired with a mixture of
coal dust and cil, *hore were occasional power failures due to the coal
shortaie and because the generators wers overloaded,

a, Two open ccal bunkers built into the ;round. The coal as dumped
directly from the railroad car into the bunkers, Two cranes loaded
the coal on an inclined slevabor equipred with duvmping buckets,

b, Inclined elevabior with dumpin: buckets,

¢, OGoal nill with several ball nmilis, .

de Gonveyor btelt used Lo transport coal dust to the boilerhouse,

€, owiteh installation oy the power nlant.

f. Turbine shop, It was schedulnd Lo be equinned with I turbines, Thrze

£ the tarbines arrived fron fritain during the war, she fourth one
was lost when the incoming freirht ship was sunk during an air raid
of{ Iurmansck, nly *wo of the threc turbines were in operaticn prior
Lo ay 19h9. “ach turbine had a capacity of 6,000 kw, The third
turbine set was incumnlete. The turbines in operaticn arce marked in
the sketch by unshaded circles.

'7s Boilerhousc eguipred with L or 5 vertical tube boilers. According
to one source, bherc werce two boilers for cach turbine,

h, Brick smckestack, 70 to 50 meters hizh,

i. Purmping station for the beilerhouse,

ko ater basin, used as a coolinm; basin and to supply water to the boilers,
+*he water was pumped throush a 2-meter-wide and 2 -meter-deep canal to the
autonobile plant,

1, Administration building of the THZL station,

Small chemical installation, reportec by two sources, Incomin;; shipmentis of
galt were obserwvid, The salt was allegedly uprocessed in this installation:

Concrete factery equivned with 3 stone crushers and 3 to 5 concrete mixing
machines, This factory produced concrote for the construction of the nlant,

+«arehonse lor materialias,
) .
Threa oil tanks,

Compressor house, ihroe larse air tanks (a) were cbserved in this stiructure,
Two foundations for the compressors were built in early 19L9.

01d energency power installation equip;ed with two Dicsel nower units, In
1948, the building also housed an automobile repairshop. :

Pfoundry, etill under constructivn in 1949, According to twe sources 6 cupola
furnaces (a) were schediled to be set vp in the foundry,

Abandened building projoct, It was allegedly planred to be a foundry but the
desicn was said to bs faulty,
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Larre forpe and pressing shon under construction, In Hay 1949, three
foundations for machince had been built and the installation of the mactinery
had started, Two heavy Toledo prescser of 90 tons and L5 tons were observed,

Repair shop equir~ed with a small hand-operated forpe (Handschmicde)n a small
lathe shop with two lathes, a welding shon with a etationary and a portsble
electric welding unit. According to one source there wos also an electrical
rerair shon, .

Tool shop, forge,and thermal department, Torls for plant requirenmente,
including metal drills, reamees,and raugcs, as well as tools for automobiles
and componcnt narts for the construction of awtomobiles such as nuts, screws,
bolts, engine and pear rarts, piston rings, universal Joints, brake rods ang
shafts, were produced and procesred in this shor. une source also indicated
the production of ball bearing races.

2. Forge, temporarily installed in this shop. It was %o be trancferred to the
new forpe after the new worlshor building had been comyleted. There were
three large hammers of & to 10 tons, two small hamrers of i to 5 tons and
S or 6 annesliny furnaces. The rrocessing of brake rods, universal ijoints
and %all bearins races were observed,

b, Hardening shoo, equinred witn & hardenins furnaces, some of which were
electrie, and with water and oil baths,

¢. Chromeerlating shon; renorted by 7 sources, It was not comrloted and nut
inte operation until February 1°L°, Incomins shirments of small white metal
bare were observed. The equirment included one furnace. )

do Workshon section for the construction of psupes and natterns, This sactien
was senarated from the remaining workshop by glass vartitions, The
temnerature was not allowed to change in this section, ss the nroducts had

.+ to be tooled to an accuracy of onc one-hundredth millimeter, The equipment
ineluded § medern horizontal drilling machines, four of which were
Cermanemade and th- other four were American-made. .

e, HMachine chopy equirred with § msrhine t-rls for rourh nroces: ing,

f, HMachire shor; cquipred with 2 larrc number of grindinc nachinas, milling

machines, bevcl wheel slotting machines, thread prindin- machines, ard lathes,

fMut and bolt department equiored with about & automatic nut and bolt
machines, . ‘

h. Machine shop. Its eguinment ineluded 10 larpe sh(ging machines set un aloug
the ncrthern wall, There were also other machine tocle. including one
planing machine 7 meters lonr and one nlaning machine 3,5 meters long.
Two sources indicated that there was a total of about 300 machine tools in
derartments 4, e, I, ¢, and h,

i, Offices for forcmen,

ky Technical designing office and leboratory.

1. Fire station and garape.

Engine and chassis ascembtly department and workshop for final ascembly of

trucke, Component parts for automobiles and engines were also produced here.

a2, Acdministration buildinr, In addition to the rlant administrative offices,
the building housed the ¥itehen and the canteen, The headquarters of an
MVD unit was also in thiz building,

b, Machine and assemkly shop for the constructicn of enpincs ond chaseis, Its
equirment included 600 machine tools of all kinds, Four hurdred of these
machine tools were electric, Priecr to May 104¢, only a few comnonent narle
were nroduced. The workshop was used mainly for the ascembly of enfine
varte,which came from Corkly, for test runs of engines and for the ascenbly
of chassis,of which all parts includiny whecls, axles, sprinFe and frames
were sunvlied from Gorkiw.

-
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c. Eleectro-technical derartment, o details were known.
d.  Tinemith's shon. Yo details werc known,

‘e, HRépair shop.

f, Hardening shor, under construction.

go Traneformer insial’ation; under construction. Four commartmenis were scheduled
to be built.

hy Tall administration building; under construction. The entire plant administraticn
was schedulad to be housed in this building in order to frec workshop space
beins used for administrative offices,

i, Workshop for the final ascembly of trucke, Its equirment included welding
equirment and rivetinr hammers. There were two assembly lines, cnc on cach
of the two longitudinal sides of the worshop, The trucks moved on ‘the first
assembly line in an west-eact direction, and on the second asrembly line in
an eagt-west direction. Ten trucks werec allegedly assembled at the same time.
According 1o one source,there was an elevated work ~latform in the castern
section of the workshop on which unidentified chassis as: embly work was done.
Trucks were assembled in five stapes, as follows: assembly of the frame and
installation of the differential; installation of the engine and of the
transmission; assembly of the radiator, the radiator cover, the cab,and of the
electrical system; assembly of the body; and acceptance test.

¥, Spray-rainting and lacquering shop, The comnleted trucks left this shop for the
rarking lot.

Workehop for the construction of truck bodies. Accordins to Soviest worksws,this shop

was called a wordworting derartment {Derevo-Obdelochinyy-Tseih)(UOTs). The worlshop

included a carpentry shop, & varnishins shon,and a2 drying shon, lccording Lo cne

source there was also an wpholrctery shorm,

2, Carventry chon, allegedly equip-ed with 25 wendworliing machines, Truck nedies,
and aglleredly truelk cabs, were nroduced here.,

b, Varnishin, shon,

€. Dring shop with two drying chambers,

Guard house,

Railroad track syrtem,
Plant roads,

Wonden fence, 2.5 meters high,
Ramp for unloading incoming materials and parts,
Famp for loading comonleted trucks.,

Parking lot for comnrleted trucks. Occasionally up to 300 trucks were parked in this
area,

Camp for foviet conviets employed for construction work,

PW Camp No 7215.
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